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Queen of Elysian Heights 
1553 W. Ewing Street & 2600 Echo Park Boulevard 

Architectural Description 
 

The Queen of Elysian Heights is a two-story two-family residence built on a corner 
lot in a T-shaped plan consisting of a main L-shaped 2-story Victorian house and a 
two-story stucco clad addition set perpendicular to the left rear of the main body 
of the house.  The main entrance is dominated by a large porch with roof forming 
a 2nd-story balcony.  The front facing wing to the left of the front door is topped by 
a small gable with an enclosed shingle clad pediment rising from the roof.  The 
original house is covered with three level clapboard siding.  A second gable faces to 
the East. 

Other architectural details include multi-light double hung windows, double paired 
on the second story and larger on the first story with a two-story bay at the front 
of the forward wing.  A small six light circular window is at the center of the forward 
gable pediment.  Decorative brackets are under the closed eaves on the front 
facade.   The front porch (added in 1919) reaches from the forward wing to East 
edge of the house.  It is supported by simple square pillars and has a low railing 
with square balustrades.   A similar, though higher, railing is at the top of the porch.  
A brick chimney (capped after being earthquake damaged) is at the center of the 
East facing gable.  The first story windows on the front facade are topped by 
decorative multi-light fixed transom windows.  The front door has a rectangular 
window with a twelve light diamond pattern at the top with three tall panels under 
it. 

A two-story stucco-clad addition (built in 1946) with double hung widows extends 
to the left at the rear of the house, almost appearing to be a separate building. 

Interior features include hardwood floors, a simple painted brick fireplace in the 
living room, decorative door frames and window sills, coved ceilings and wide 
baseboards. 



Queen of Elysian Heights 
1553 W. Ewing Street & 2004 Echo Park Boulevard  

Significance Statement 

The Queen of Elysian Heights was possibly the first house built in the Elysian 
Heights Tract in what is now the Echo Park community of Los Angeles.  The 
building is an example of Queen Anne Victorian architecture, built in what was 
then the outskirts of Los Angeles around 1895, when the subdivision was filed 
with the county recorder.  At present it is unknown who the original owner was or 
who the architect or contractor may have been. 
 

The design of the house is typical of the Queen Anne cottages of the late 19 th 
Century.  According to art historian Stephanie Przybylek: 

embellished with lots of decorative flourishes? You might have been looking at an 
example of Queen Anne architecture, which seems to express the idea that more is 
better. 

Queen Anne architecture was a style found from around 1880 to 1900. It began 
in England and then became very popular in the United States, lasting in the 
Western states until around 1910. When you hear someone talking about Victorian 
architecture, chances are this is the style that comes to mind. 

The style was christened 'Queen Anne' by several English architects. But the 
name's a bit of a misnomer, because it was based on several medieval and early 
Renaissance architectural styles from the late 1500s and early 1600s. In reality, the 
actual Queen Anne didn't rule until at least one hundred years later, in the early 
1700s. Nevertheless, the name Queen Anne stuck. 

moved to the United States, it became even more eclectic, picking up other 
decorative flourishes and adding a little bit of everything. Printed pattern books--
publications full of illustrations--helped spread its popularity and show builders, 
carpenters, and craftspeople how to add elements of the style to various 
structures.  

Since no record of the original construction of the house has been located, coupled 

houses.  Due to COVID-19 restrictions, a full title search has not been completed.  
The earliest record located was in 1903, when the house was bought by Thomas D. 
Champion and his wife, Olive.  It is one of the earliest houses to be constructed in 
Elysian Heights. 



Elysian Heights was one of several tracts of land that were purchased by Scottish-
born attorney John S. Maltman in what are now the Echo Park and Silver Lake 
communities.  Born in Scotland in 1840, he came to the United States at the age of 
11 and had to work in mining and as a sailor, earning enough to pay his way 
through Ann Arbor College in Michigan.  At 22, he enlisted in the Union Army as 
a Sargent in Company E of the 17th Michigan Infantry during the Civil War, rising 
to the rank of Captain until he was wounded and captured at the battle of 
Spotsylvania Courthouse in May of 1864.  He spent the following year in the 
horrid 
the harsh conditions.  He arrived in Los Angeles in 1884, just before the beginning 
of the Great Land Boom. 

Maltman subdivided Elysian Heights in three phases.  Phase 1 was the Southern 
part of the tract, which covered blocks 11 through 24, was surveyed in September 
1887, but not recorded until July 20, 1889.  Blocks 11 through 17 were not broken 
down into lots.  The lots for blocks 12 through 17 were also surveyed at the same 
time, but were not recorded until November 8, 1995.  The subject house was 
probably constructed at that time or shortly thereafter.  The Northern portion of the 
tract was also surveyed in 1887, but it was not filed until February 15, 1901, 
encompassing Block 1 through 10 of the tract. 

Members of the current family that owns the house have reported finding a letter 
many years ago that was an ode to the house possibly written by the original owner 
in the late 1880s.  The letter has not been seen for years and its location is 
presently unknown.  If it is legitimate, it could date the construction of the house 
back to the 1880s.  The 1895 date is based on the filing of the tract map of the 
subdivision of the blocks.  No actual construction date is showing on the county 
records. 

Lots 11 and 12 of Block 12 were bought by the Champions in 1903 with the house 
already there.  At that time the address was 2460 N. Mecca Avenue.  Since the 
house faced South, fronting on what was then Husted Street, the address was 
changed to 1621 Husted Avenue by 1906.  The city realigned the addresses about a 
decade later and the house became 1553 Husted until the street was renamed 
Ewing Street in the 1920s.  Mecca Avenue had become Echo Park Avenue before 
1920.  When the stucco addition was built in 1946, the official address was 
changed to 2004 N. Echo Park Avenue.  However, the address for the historic 
house remains at 1553 Ewing Street. 

Prior to 1903, Thomas D. Champion and his family had been living with his older 
brother, Columbus C. Champion , in a small cottage located 
across the street from the subject property.  The Texas native had been working as 
a laborer but got a new job as a driver for the Elysian Springs Water Company, 
which was located just to the North of hi



suffering from mental issues which had driven all of his relatives, including his 
wife and children, out of his house.  On December 27, 1904, Lum shot and killed 
his 56 year old brother in the middle of Mecca Avenue. 

Olive Champion continued to live in the house, eventually remarrying to Charles 
A. Shely, another former Texan.  on 
July 23, 1919.  Born Reuben Mostovnik in Warsaw, Poland on April 15, 1886, 
Most was a carpenter by trade.  He and his wife, 
Rebecca Juransky, never lived in the house.  They lived nearby at 2041 Park Drive 
and rented the house to fellow Jewish immigrant Morris Udin and his extended 
family. 

Shortly after buying the property, Most built the current porch onto the house.  In 
1922 he began a building process on the remaining land.  He had a house moved 
onto Lot 12 at 2010 Echo Park Avenue and then added a store front to that house.  
He then built a duplex on the East 40 feet of Lot 11.  

On April 26, 1927, the Mosts sold the property to John Garfield and Abba Claire 
Staub.   John Staub was born in Wellington, Kansas on August 14, 1878.  He was a 
real estate broker and continued to rent out the house.  He married Abba Claire 
McCready on January 3, 1906.  When the Great Depression hit, the real estate 
industry tanked and the Staubs were left with a greatly reduced income. 

Abba split their property ownership.  On October 18, 1933, Abba deeded her 
interest in the subject house to John as his sole and separate property.  On August 
2, 1934 he released the property to California Bank.  He passed away on January 1, 
1937, at the age of 68. 

California Bank opted to split the property by separating the two buildings that 
Rueben Most had added in 1922 off and selling them separately, initiating a series 
of very quick transfers for the Queen of Elysian Heights.  On October 7, 1937 the 
bank sold the remaining Northwest 4,002.2± square feet of Lot 11 to Clara E. 
Murray (nee Light), a 55 year old Ohio-born housewife.  Her husband, Charles 
Murray, a contractor, quit-claimed his interest to her at the time of her purchase.  
On January 14, 1938, Murray deeded the house to Kathryn R. Holahan as her sole 
and separate property.  Her husband, Lester Holahan was not mentioned on the 
deed.  Four days later, Holahan flipped the house to Carrie F. Guay, also a married 
woman, as her sole and separate property.  She transferred it to George Zenaire, a 
44 year old recreation director, on November 9, 1938. 

George Theodore Zenaire was born in Chicago, Illinois on November 4, 1894.  His 
late wife, Carry, was a piano teacher.  Zenaire quickly deeded the property to 
Frank A. Rodescheck on December 16, 1938. 



A native of Jardine, Montana, where he was born on August 25, 1901, Frank 
Albert Rodecheck had just married 34 year old Edith Katherine Milligan on 
August 20, 1938.   A real estate broker, Rodecheck continued to use the house as a 
rental over the year that he owned it.  He and his wife deeded it to Samuel and 
Cecelia  Rudolph on January 19, 1940. 

Samuel Herman Rudolph was born in Russia on September 21, 1887 and came to 
the United States in 1904.  He married Celia, also of Russian birth, around 1917 
and they both were naturalized in the early 1930s.  He worked as a houseman for a 
hotel and they were the first owners to live in the house since 1919.  However, by 
1945, they had lease the house to Wesley Floyd Wood and his wife Lauretta Inez 
Wood.  Born in Wayne Nebraska on May 4, 1890, Wood first followed in his 

Galbraith who had been born in Minier, Illinois on July 1, 1886. 

The Woods moved to Los Angeles in 1935, where Floyd began working full-time 

agreement with the Rudolphs to add a second unit to the house.  On November 5, 
1945 he took out a permit to build an addition to the house.  The following month, 
an engineer from Building and Safety determined that the foundation he had laid 
for the addition did not conform the requirements and ordered him it and start over.  
A second permit for the addition was taken out on January 8, 1946.  This time the 
work was completed in the form of a plain stucco clad addition connected to the 
Northwest corner of the house.  On July 12, 1948, the Rudolphs formally deeded 
the house to the Woods.  A third unit was subsequently created within the existing 
building during the Woods ownership.  Almost a decade later, the woods sold the 
house to Lloyd J. and Shirley P. Runyon on July 19, 1957. 

Two months later, on September 5, 1957, 26 year old Carol Smith Sonnenberg, the 
tenant in the third unit, at 1553½, was stabbed to death by her husband.  According 
to the Los Angeles Times, She collapsed and died in the arms of Don Barbato, her 
neighbor in the old house at 1553 Ewing Street, after she ran to him screaming.  He 
called out for teenage boys to grab the suspect, but although the boys grabbed him, 
he managed to escape in his car.  The chased him for a mile in their own vehicles 
but lost him in traffic.  A later article noted that she had married 35 year old John 
Sonnenberg the previous December in Mexico.  Her 4-year old son, Mark, was 
sleeping inside when his mother was slain.  No published record was found on 

r trial. 

On July 19, 1958, one year to t
to Thomas E. Kelly.  Due to the commonality of his name, he was not able to be 

selling 
it John C. and Nellie T. Arechiga on March 10th of the following year.  At the time 



of the transfer, the Arechiga Family was involved in a very nasty and well 
publicized controversy.  Two months after the purchase, Manuel 
and Avrana Arechiga were forcibly evicted from their long time home in Chavez 
Ravine.  They owned three homes at 1767, 1771 and 1801 Malvina Avenue, that 
were taken by eminent domain after a lawsuit in 1953.   

The Chavez Ravine battle had begun in the 1940s when it was proposed as the site 
for a 3,355 unit government housing development to be designed by Richard 
Nuetra and Robert Alexander.  Much of the land had been owned for years by the 
Department of Water and Power which had planned to build its headquarters there, 
but in the late 1930s, the plan was changed to build at Civic Center and the ravine 
land, mostly still improved with the now rented homes, became surplus property of 
the DWP. 

It was deeded to the Federal Housing Authority which then set out to acquire the 
remaining parcels, including the Arechiga homes.  In July 1950, all of the 
remaining residents of Chavez Ravine received letters from the city telling them 
that they would have to sell their homes in order to make the land available for the 
proposed project dubbed Elysian Park Heights .  Most came to an agreement, but 
a few could not agree on a price for their land.  The government opted to use 
eminent domain proceedings when a price could not be agreed to.  Shortly after the 

 on the 
massive endeavor. 

Even though the government had a ruling that the offered price was to be used, the 
abandonment of the project left the former owners on their land, refusing the 
payment.  This arrangement ended when the land, which had been transferred back 

lots on the parcel at the time of the sale, so the City went after the evictions.  One 
Aurora 

, defiant to the 
end. 

The Arechiga Family had become the faces of protest in May 1959 when they were 
forcibly removed from their homes which were then immediately bulldozed.  They 
immediately set up a tent on the land and refused to leave until they reached an 
agreement with the city, making for a banner headline in the May 15, 1959 Los 

out that the family owned eleven properties in Los Angeles besides the three they 
had in Chavez Ravine.  The write up revealing that had a photo of the subject 
house as the first one in the article. 



John Cabral Arechiga was born in Zelzah (now Northridge) California on February 
8, 1923 and grew up in Chavez Ravine.  He married Nellie Tavison on December 
1, 1942.  The Arechigas sold the house to Maurice O. Eubanks on March 31, 1964. 

Born in Du Quoin, Illinois on May 6, 1906, Maurice Owen Eubanks was divorced 
at the time of his purchase, but on February 23, 1957 he married Grace Lafern 
Carter in Carson City, Nevada and added his new wife to the title on December 12, 
1969.  They sold the property to Alfred C. and Mary P. Jarrin on December 11, 
1974. 

Alfredo Cardenas Jarrin was a native of Guayaquil, Ecuador, where he was born on 
February 3, 1921.  He immigrated to the United States in 1945 and became a 
citizen in 1953.  His wife was born Mary Paz Gomez in Lompoc, California, 
California, on February 24, 1927 and grew up in Montebello, California, where her 
father worked as a nurseryman.  The Jarrins were to become the longest owners of 
the house on record, raising their family there
September 12, 2014, at the age of 93.  His probate did not start until September 11, 
2019 and on January 30, 2020 the property was placed into a conservatorship for 
Mary Jarrin.  It is now listed for sale. 

For many years it has been looked upon as a special home in the area, being the 
only remaining Victorian house in the neighborhood.  

is a more recent moniker, it typifies the way that the Echo Park 
community has viewed the house for decades. 

The house is noted in Historic Places L. A. as 

Los Angeles Historic Cultural Mo
events of national, state, or local history, or exemplifies significant contributions to 
the broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation, state, city or 

 

The Queen of Elysian Heights also qualifies for Los Angeles Historic Cultural 
Monument status as an important example of a Queen Anne Victorian that 

  The house is cited in Historic Places L.A. 
  The house is an excellent 

example of a small Queen Anne Victorian. 
 
The house is given a rating as being individually eligible for the National Register 

development in the  









Queen of Elysian Heights 
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Building Permit History 
2004 Echo Park Boulevard and 1553 W. Ewing Street 

Echo Park 

Circa 1895: Construction of a 2-story, 6-room, 32 24 , frame residence, at 
1621 Husted Street (now 1553 W. Ewing Street), on Lots 11 and 
12, Block 12 of the Subdivision of Blocks 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 & 
17 of Elysian Heights. 
Owner: Unknown 
Architect: Unknown 
Contractor: Unknown 
Cost: Unknown 

 
September 27, 1919: Building Permit No. 8362 

.  
Owner: Reuben Most 
Architect: None 
Contractor: Reuben Most 
Cost: $200.00 

 
November 5, 1945: Building Permit No. 21387 for proposed 2-

stucco 1 family addition at 2004 Echo Park Boulevard, part of 
Lot 11, Block 12, Elysian Heights.  (Note on rear dated Dec. 28, 

foundation which, after checking by the engineer of the Dept. of 
Building and Safety, are found not to conform with the building 

Wood by Lauretta Wood. 
Owner: Floyd Wood 
Architect: None 
Engineer: None 
Contractor: Owner 
Cost: $550.00 

 
January 8, 1946: Building Permit No. 514 for proposed 2-

1 family addition {2nd permit}. Architectural OK required 
Owner: Floyd Wood 
Architect: None 
Engineer: None 
Contractor: Owner 
Cost: $550.00 

 



February 8, 1978: Building Permit No. LA58371 to comply with conservation 
letter dated January 13, 1978. 
Owner: Mary Jarrin 
Architect: None 
Engineer: None 
Contractor: Owner 
Cost: $500.00 

November 11, 1993: Building Permit No. LA12515 to remove existing roofing and 
replace with ½ CDX plywood, 15 lb. felt, asphalt shingles 16 sq. 
Owner: Mary Jarrin 
Architect: None 
Engineer: None  
Contractor: Owner 
Cost: $5,000.00 

February 3, 2003: Plumbing Permit No. WO34203615 for replacing old drain 
pipes (cast iron). 
Owner: Alfred C. and Mary P. Jarrin 
Architect: None 
Engineer: None  
Contractor: Owner 
Cost: Not Shown 

January 12, 2017: Building Permit No. OL15813 to reroof with 18 sqrs COMP 
SHINGLE roofing.  Existing solid sheathing.  Re-roof with class 
A or B material weighing less than 6 pounds per sq. ft. for 
residential roof replacement > 50% of the total roof area, apply 
Cool Roof Product labeled and certified by Cool Roof Rating 
Council (CRRC).  Cool Roof may be required for non-
residential buildings per Title 24, Part 6, Section 149(b). 
Owner: Mary P. Jarrin 
Architect: None 
Engineer: None  
Contractor: T & U Roofing 
Cost: $3,600.00 

































Photographs 
Queen of Elysian Heights, 2004 Echo Park Avenue & 1553 Ewing Avenue, Echo Park 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, May 13, 1959 (Los Angeles Times Photo) 



 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, West facade, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, 2nd story windows, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, enclosed eaves & brackets, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, 1946 addition, 2004 Echo Park Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, entry to 1946 addition, 2004. Echo Park Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, satellite view, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, January, 2021 (Photo by Google Earth) 

 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, front gable, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, rear facade, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, earthquake damaged chimney, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, front bay, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, front bay window, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, front porch (built in 1919), 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, front balcony, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, front door, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 
 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, living room, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 2021 (Multiple listings Photo) 

 

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, interior of bay, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, fireplace, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

  

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, coved ceiling, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

  
 



 
Queen of Elysian Heights, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 

  

 
Queen of Elysian Heights, 1553 W. Ewing Avenue, November 22, 2021 (Photo by Charles J. Fisher) 
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